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                                     DEVELOPMENT REVIEW COMMITTEE
 

Tuesday, March 24, 2015
 

AGENDA
 

The Monroe County Development Review Committee will conduct a meeting on Tuesday, March 24, 2015, beginning at 1:00 PM
at the Marathon Government Center, Media & Conference Room (1st floor, rear hallway), 2798 Overseas Highway, Marathon,
Florida.
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
ROLL CALL
 
DRC MEMBERS:
Townsley Schwab, Senior Director of Planning and Environmental Resources
Mayte Santamaria, Senior Director of Planning and Environmental Resources
Mike Roberts, Sr. Administrator, Environmental Resources
DOT Representative
Steve Zavalney, Captain, Fire Prevention
Public Works Department Representative
 
STAFF MEMBERS
Christine Hurley, Growth Management Division Director
Rey Ortiz, Planning & Biological Plans Examiner Supervisor
Emily Schemper, Comprehensive Planning Manager
Matt Coyle, Principal Planner
Barbara Bauman, Planner
Gail Creech, Sr. Planning Commission Coordinator
 
CHANGES TO THE AGENDA
 
MINUTES FOR APPROVAL

 
MEETING
 
New Items:
 
1. Playa Largo Resort, 97450 Overseas Highway, Key Largo, mile marker 97.5: A public meeting concerning a request for an
Amendment to a Major Conditional Use Permit. The requested approval is required for the development of a proposed 177-unit
hotel and associated accessory uses. The subject property is legally described as Tracts 4B and 5B, Amended Plat of Mandalay
(Plat Book 2, Page 25), Key Largo, and also a tract of submerged land in the Bay of Florida fronting said Tract 5B (TIIF Deed No.
22416), Monroe County, Florida, having real estate number 00555010.000000.
(File 2015-031)
2015-031 SR DRC 03.24.15.PDF
2015-031 FILE.PDF
2015-031 Traffic Study Rev Feb 2015.pdf
2015-031 Recvd 02.11.15 Website Bldg Plans.PDF
2015-031 Recvd 02.11.15 Website Landscape Plans.PDF
2015-031 Recvd 02.11.15 Website Site Plans.PDF
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2. AN ORDINANCE BY THE MONROE COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS AMENDING MONROE COUNTY
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN POLICY 101.4.26 TO PROVIDE AN EXCEPTION TO THE HEIGHT LIMIT FOR WIND TURBINES
OWNED AND OPERATED BY A PUBLIC UTILITY; CREATING POLICY 101.5.31 TO ADDRESS NON-HABITABLE
ARCHITECTURAL DECORATIVE FEATURES WITHIN THE OCEAN REEF COMMUNITY; CREATING POLICIES 101.5.32 AND
101.5.33 TO PROVIDE CERTAIN EXCEPTIONS TO THE HEIGHT LIMIT IN ORDER TO PROTECT PROPERTY FROM
FLOODING AND REDUCE FLOOD INSURANCE COSTS; AND CREATING POLICY 101.5.34 TO PROVIDE AN EXCEPTION TO
THE HEIGHT LIMIT EXCLUSIVELY FOR AFFORDABLE OR EMPLOYEE/WORKFORCE DWELLING UNITS THAT MEET THE
INCOME LIMITS FOR THE VERY LOW, LOW AND/OR MEDIAN INCOME CATEGORIES ON PROPERTIES DESIGNATED AS
TIER 3; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR REPEAL OF CONFLICTING PROVISIONS; PROVIDING FOR
TRANSMITTAL TO THE STATE LAND PLANNING AGENCY AND THE SECRETARY OF STATE; PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION
IN THE MONROE COUNTY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.
(File 2015-006)
2015-006 SR DRC 03.24.15.pdf
 
3. AN ORDINANCE BY THE MONROE COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS AMENDING MONROE COUNTY
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN POLICIES 101.5.8 AND 101.13.5 WITHIN THE FUTURE LAND USE ELEMENT AND POLICIES
207.1.2 WITHIN THE CONSERVATION AND COASTAL MANAGEMENT ELEMENT TO FURTHER CLARIFY THE
DEVELOPMENT OF OFFSHORE ISLANDS; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR REPEAL OF CONFLICTING
PROVISIONS; PROVIDING FOR TRANSMITTAL TO THE STATE LAND PLANNING AGENCY AND THE SECRETARY OF
STATE; PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION IN THE MONROE COUNTY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN; PROVIDING FOR AN
EFFECTIVE DATE.
(File 2015-007)
2015-007 SR DRC 03.24.15-Website.PDF
 
ADA ASSISTANCE: If you are a person with a disability who needs special accommodations in order to participate in this
proceeding, please contact the County Administrator's Office, by phoning (305) 292-4441, between the hours of 8:30 a.m. - 5:00
p.m., no later than five (5) calendar days prior to the scheduled meeting; if you are hearing or voice impaired, call “711”.
 
ADJOURNMENT 
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 1 Playa Largo 
Traffic Study 

INTRODUCTION 
 
 

Playa Largo (a.k.a. Playa Cristal) is a planned transient unit hotel development to be 

located on the bay side of US 1 / Overseas Highway between mile markers 97 and 98 in 

Key Largo, Monroe County, Florida.  More specifically, the subject site is located on the 

north side of US 1 / Overseas Highway between the T-intersections of US 1 / Second 

Avenue and US 1 / Ocean Drive.  The location of this project site is illustrated in Figure 1 

on the following page. 

 

KBP Consulting, Inc. has been retained by the Key Largo Hospitality Land Trust to 

prepare a traffic study in connection with this proposed development.  This study 

addresses the vehicular traffic volumes expected to be generated by the proposed 

development and the projected turning movement volumes at the project access driveway 

on US 1 / Overseas Highway.  This driveway will serve as the only public vehicular 

access point to the site. 

 

This traffic study is divided into four (4) sections, as listed below: 

 

1. Inventory 

2. Trip Generation 

3. Trip Distribution and Driveway Assignment 

4. Summary & Conclusions 

 



FIGURE 1
Playa Largo

Key Largo, Florida
Project Location Map

N

LEGEND

Project Site

KBP
CONSULTING, INC.

Site
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INVENTORY 
 
 

Existing Land Use and Access 

The project site is currently vacant.  Vehicular access to the site is currently provided by 

a right-turn in / right-turn out only on the southbound lanes of US 1 / Overseas Highway. 

 

Proposed Land Use and Access 

The subject site will be redeveloped with a resort hotel and associated resort amenities.  

The total number of transient (hotel) dwelling units will be 177.  There will also be a 

single family residence located on the property.  Vehicular access to the site will be 

provided via a right-turn in / right-turn out only driveway on the southbound lanes of 

US 1 / Overseas Highway toward the southern end of the site.  (There will be an 

additional emergency only driveway located toward the north end of the site.)  

Appendix A contains the preliminary site plan for the proposed project. 

 

Roadway System 

US 1 / Overseas Highway is located along the southeast side of the project site.  In this 

area, US 1 / Overseas Highway is a four-lane divided (i.e. one-way pair) principal arterial 

roadway. 
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TRIP GENERATION 
 
 

A trip generation analysis has been conducted for the proposed hotel development and 

the single family residence.  The analysis was performed using the trip generation rates 

and equations published in the Institute of Transportation Engineer’s ITE Trip 

Generation Manual (9th Edition).  The trip generation analysis was undertaken for daily, 

AM peak hour, and PM peak hour conditions.  According to the ITE report, the most 

appropriate land use categories and trip generation rates for the proposed development 

are as follows: 

 

Hotel – ITE Land Use #310 

 Weekday:  T = 8.95 (X) – 373.16 
where T = number of trips and X = number of rooms 
 

 AM Peak Hour: T = 0.53 (X)  (59% in / 41% out) 

 PM Peak Hour: T = 0.60 (X)  (51% in / 49% out) 

 

Single-Family Detached Housing – ITE Land Use #210 

 Weekday:  T = 9.52 (X) 
where T = number of trips and X = number of dwelling units 
 

 AM Peak Hour: T = 0.75 (X)  (25% in / 75% out) 

 PM Peak Hour: T = 1.00 (X)  (63% in / 37% out) 

Utilizing the above-listed trip generation rates and equations from the referenced ITE 

document, a trip generation analysis was undertaken for the proposed development.  The 

results of this effort are documented in Table 1 on the following page. 
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Daily
Land Use Trips In Out Total In Out Total

Proposed
Hotel 177 Rooms 1,211 55 39 94 54 52 106

Single-Family Residence 1 DU 10 0 1 1 1 0 1

TOTAL 1,221 55 40 95 55 52 107
Compiled by: KBP Consulting, Inc. (January 2015).
Source:  Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE) Trip Generation Manual (9th Edition).

AM Peak Hour Trips PM Peak Hour Trips
Size

Table 1
Trip Generation Summary

Playa Largo - Key Largo, Florida

 
 

 
As indicated in Table 1, the proposed project is anticipated to generate 1,221 daily 

vehicle trips, 95 AM peak hour vehicle trips (55 inbound and 40 outbound) and 

107 vehicle trips (55 inbound and 52 outbound) during the typical afternoon peak hour. 
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TRIP DISTRIBUTION AND DRIVEWAY ASSIGNMENT 
 
 

Given the driveway location and the roadway geometry of US 1 / Overseas Highway in 

this area (i.e. US 1 operates as a one-way pair in this area), all project traffic will enter 

the site as southbound right turns and all exiting traffic will be required to turn right onto 

US 1 / Overseas Highway and travel in a southbound direction.  Figure 2 on the 

following page presents the AM and PM peak hour driveway volumes for the 

Playa Largo project. 

 

Based upon the projected driveway volumes anticipated during the AM and PM peak 

hours, a dedicated southbound right-turn lane is not required / warranted at this location 

on US 1 / Overseas Highway. 



FIGURE 2
Playa Largo

Key Largo, Florida

N

KBP
CONSULTING, INC.

Driveway Traffic Assignment
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(YY) PM Peak Hour
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SUMMARY & CONCLUSIONS 
 
 

Playa Largo (a.k.a. Playa Cristal) is a planned transient unit hotel development to be 

located on the bay side of US 1 / Overseas Highway between mile markers 97 and 98 in 

Key Largo, Monroe County, Florida.  The subject site will be redeveloped with a resort 

hotel and associated resort amenities.  The total number of transient (hotel) dwelling units 

will be 177.  One (1) single-family residence will also be located on the property.  

Vehicular access to the site will be provided via a right-turn in / right-turn out only 

driveway on US 1 / Overseas Highway toward the southern end of the site. 

The trip generation analysis indicates that the proposed project is anticipated to generate 

approximately 1,221 daily vehicle trips, 95 AM peak hour vehicle trips (55 inbound and 

40 outbound) and 107 vehicle trips (55 inbound and 52 outbound) during the typical 

afternoon peak hour. 

Based upon the projected driveway volumes anticipated during the AM and PM peak 

hours, a dedicated southbound right-turn lane is not required / warranted at this location 

on US 1 / Overseas Highway. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX A 
 

Site Plan 
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thereof as recorded in Plat Book 2 at Page 25 of the public records of

Tracts 4B and 5B, " Amended Plat of MANDALAY ", on Key Largo, according to the plat

D E S C R I P T I O N S

A tract of submerged land in the Bay of Florida in fronting said Tract 5B, conveyed by Trustees  

of the Internal Improvement Fund of the State of Florida by its Deed No 22416, more particularly

From the intersection of the dividing line between Tracts 4B and 5B, according to said Anended  

Plat of Mandalay, with the northwesterly right of way line of State Road No. 5, run N49°55'40"W

along said dividing line, a distance of 500 feet to the mean high tide line on the shore of the

Bay of Florida and the Point of Beginning of the tract hereinafter described; thence meander

said mean high tide line in a northeasterly direction  for 537 feet more or less, to the south line

of Lot 9, as shown on the plat of "Government Lots 5 and 6 and the NW 1/4 of the NW 1/4

of Section 5 and Lots 1 and 2 of Section 6, Township 62 South, Range 39 East" and recorded

in Plat Book 1 at Page 59, public records, Monroe County, Florida; thence N 88°55'W along the

said south line of Lot 9, a distance of 75 feet more or less to the most westerly corner of

said Lot 9, as shown on said plat; thence N 44°22'W, a distance of 145 feet; thence S40°21'W

a distance of 509.6 feet to the northwesterly prolongation of the dividing line betweem Tracts

4B and 5B, according to said Amended Plat of Mandalay; thence S 49°55'40"E, along said north-

westerly prolongation, a distance of 200 feet to the Point of Beginning.  

Subject to aerial easement (OR 826, P 2489) in favor of Florida Keys Electric CoOp

The southeasterly 3' of Tract 5B of Amended Plat of Mandalay according to the plat thereof, recorded in

Plat Book 2 at Page 25 of the public records of Monroe County, Florida, said southeasterly 3' being adjacent

to US Highway No. 1, and located between poles numbered 410 and 412 of the grantee herein, adjacent to said

easement. This easement shall be an aerial easement only to permit grantee to encroach on the property of

grantor with pole attachments affixed to grantee's poles numbered 410, 411 and 412.

GENERAL NOTES

 ALL LIGHTING STANDARDS WILL MEET MONROE COUNTY REQUIREMENT FOR FULL

CUT OFF FIXTURES.

 CLEAR SITE TRIANGLES TO BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH FDOT 2013 STANDARDS AND

SPECIFICATIONS.

 THERE IS NO PARKING LOT LANDSCAPING REQUIRED IN A RV ZONE.

 ALL LANDSCAPE DESIGN IS SHOWN FOR REFERENCE ONLY. SEE LANDSCAPE

DRAWINGS FOR COORDINATION.
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MEMORANDUM  
MONROE COUNTY PLANNING & ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCES DEPARTMENT 

 
 
To: Monroe County Development Review Committee 

Townsley Schwab, Senior Director of Planning & Environmental Resources  
 
From:  Mayté Santamaria, Senior Director of Planning & Environmental Resources 

Emily Schemper, Comprehensive Planning Manager 
 
Date:  March 17, 2015 
 
Subject: AN ORDINANCE BY THE MONROE COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY 

COMMISSIONERS AMENDING MONROE COUNTY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 
POLICY 101.4.26 TO PROVIDE AN EXCEPTION TO THE HEIGHT LIMIT FOR WIND 
TURBINES OWNED AND OPERATED BY A PUBLIC UTILITY; CREATING POLICY 
101.5.31 TO ADDRESS NON-HABITABLE ARCHITECTURAL DECORATIVE 
FEATURES WITHIN THE OCEAN REEF COMMUNITY; CREATING POLICIES 
101.5.32 AND 101.5.33 TO PROVIDE CERTAIN EXCEPTIONS TO THE HEIGHT 
LIMIT IN ORDER TO PROTECT PROPERTY FROM FLOODING AND REDUCE 
FLOOD INSURANCE COSTS; AND CREATING POLICY 101.5.34 TO PROVIDE AN 
EXCEPTION TO THE HEIGHT LIMIT EXCLUSIVELY FOR AFFORDABLE OR 
EMPLOYEE/WORKFORCE DWELLING UNITS THAT MEET THE INCOME LIMITS 
FOR THE VERY LOW, LOW AND/OR MEDIAN INCOME CATEGORIES ON 
PROPERTIES DESIGNATED AS TIER 3; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; 
PROVIDING FOR REPEAL OF CONFLICTING PROVISIONS; PROVIDING FOR 
TRANSMITTAL TO THE STATE LAND PLANNING AGENCY AND THE 
SECRETARY OF STATE; PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION IN THE MONROE COUNTY 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
Meeting: March 24, 2015 

 
I. REQUEST 

 
The Monroe County Planning & Environmental Resources is proposing an amendment to revise the 
height limit policy to provide an exception to the height limit for wind turbines owned and operated by 
a public utility; create Policy 101.5.31 to address non-habitable architectural decorative features 
within the Ocean Reef community; create Policies 101.5.32 and 101.5.33 to provide certain exceptions 
to the height limit in order to protect property from flooding and reduce flood insurance costs; and 
create Policy 101.5.34 to provide an exception to the height limit exclusively for affordable or 
employee/workforce dwelling units that meet the income limits for the very low, low and/or median 
income categories on properties designated as tier 3. 
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II. BACKGROUND INFORMATION  
 

The County has been working on the Comprehensive Plan update and has held numerous public 
hearings on the proposed amendments.  Most recently, the Board of County Commissioners 
(BOCC) held special public meetings on March 21, 2014, April 23, 2014 and May 22, 2014, to 
review proposed amendments to the Comprehensive Plan. A special BOCC public hearing was 
held on July 23, 2014, to consider the transmittal of the proposed amendments (the Monroe County 
2030 Comprehensive Plan) to the Florida Department of Economic Opportunity (DEO) and this 
hearing was continued to October 7, 2014.  
 
The Monroe County Board of County Commissioners held a special meeting on October 7, 2014, to 
consider the transmittal of the proposed amendments (the Monroe County 2030 Comprehensive Plan) 
to the Florida Department of Economic Opportunity (DEO) and the hearing was continued to 
December 10, 2014, to discuss the following: 

• Policies 101.5.31 and 101.5.32: BOCC directed staff to work on height policies for addressing 
the replacement of existing buildings which exceed the 35ft height limit, architectural features, 
flood protection purposes and affordable housing. Staff to present drafts during the regular 
December BOCC meeting. 

• BOCC directed staff to work on an inventory/data of privately-owned offshore islands. Staff to 
present draft during the regular December BOCC meeting. 

 
During the regular December 10, 2014 BOCC meeting, a public hearing was held to discuss proposed 
height and offshore island policies and to consider the transmittal of the proposed amendments (the 
Monroe County 2030 Comprehensive Plan) to the DEO.  The BOCC directed staff to maintain the 
existing adopted height and offshore island policies and to extract the proposed changes to the height 
limit policy and process it as a separate amendment.   

 
III. ANALYSIS OF PROPOSED AMENDMENT 
 
HEIGHT: 
 
In unincorporated Monroe County, height and grade are defined as follows: 
 

HEIGHT is defined as: the vertical distance between grade and the highest part of any 
structure, including mechanical equipment, but excluding chimneys; spires and/or steeples on 
structures used for institutional and/or public uses only; radio and/or television antenna, 
flagpoles; solar apparatus; utility poles and/or transmission towers; and certain antenna 
supporting structures with attached antenna and/or collocations as permitted in chapter 146. 
However, in no event shall any of the exclusions enumerated in this section be construed to 
permit any habitable or usable space to exceed the applicable height limitations. In the case of 
airport districts, the height limitations therein shall be absolute and the exclusions enumerated 
in this section shall not apply. 
 
GRADE means the highest natural elevation of the ground surface, prior to construction, 
next to the proposed walls of a structure, or the crown or curb of the nearest road directly 
adjacent to the structure, whichever is higher. To confirm the natural elevation of the ground 
surface, the county shall utilize the Light Detection and Ranging (LiDAR) dataset for Monroe 
County prepared in 2007. In the event 2007 LiDAR data is not available for a given parcel, the 
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county shall use the best available data, including, but not limited to, pre-construction 
boundary surveys with elevations, pre-construction topographic surveys, elevation certificates 
and/or other optical remote sensing data. 

 
Based on the adopted definitions the following is a basic depiction of: height = the vertical distance 
between grade and the highest part of any structure.  In this depiction, the crown of the nearest road directly 
adjacent to the structure is higher than natural elevation of the ground surface (prior to construction, next to 
the proposed walls of a structure).  As such, the crown of the road is the starting point, for this example, in 
measuring the vertical distance of the structure. 
 
 
 

                   
 
 
 
In the Comprehensive Plan update, recommendations to amend and expand the height policy have been 
made to clarify the measurement of height to match the recently amended land development code 
(Ordinance 003-2011) and to address new issues, such as: anticipating new FEMA flood maps and creating 
a mechanism to assist property owners to protect their property from flooding and reduce flood insurance 
costs as well as issues in permitting relative to architectural decorative features.  
 
For review convenience, a transcription of the BOCC height discussion, from the October 7, 2014 public 
hearing, is attached (Exhibit 1).  

Crown of the road 

The vertical distance 
between grade (crown of 
road, based on definition, 
for this example) and the 

highest part of the structure 
= Height 

Height limit 

For this example, a 3 story 
home may be developed 
within the 35 foot height 

limit and the flood zone of 
AE 5ft 

2ft of fill needed to reach 5ft 
flood zone requirement from 
the natural elevation of 3 feet  
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OCEAN REEF - architectural decorative features:  
 
Policy 101.5.31  
For Ocean Reef, a gated community which is isolated and inaccessible to the surrounding community, and 
has a distinct community character, structures may include non-habitable architectural decorative features 
(such as finials, rails, widow’s walk) that exceed the 35 foot height limit in Policy 101.5.30, but such 
features shall not exceed 5 feet above the structure’s roof-line. This exception shall not result in a structure 
or any architectural decorative feature with a height that would exceed 40 feet. 
 
Draft Policy 101.5.31 is intended to address non-habitable architectural decorative features which are 
commonly applied for in the Ocean Reef community and the issues this causes in permitting relative to the 
architectural decorative features. 
 
 

  40’ 0” 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
This type of exemption would be to address items such as balls, finials, or a widow’s walk  
 

       

Yellow = 
symbol for a 
non-habitable 
architectural 
decorative 
feature 

http://www.bing.com/images/search?q=widow's+walk&qpvt=widows+walk&FORM=IGRE#view=detail&id=7D2DD08C178A125A771A68CA325011F94DD41E4B&selectedIndex=0
http://www.bing.com/images/search?q=Roof+Ridge+Decoration&FORM=IRMHRS#view=detail&id=327F0792912BAC0C924CE9141B4D7772CA2CBD88&selectedIndex=1
http://www.bing.com/images/search?q=widow's+walk&qpvt=widows+walk&FORM=IGRE#view=detail&id=7D2DD08C178A125A771A68CA325011F94DD41E4B&selectedIndex=0
http://www.bing.com/images/search?q=Roof+Ridge+Decoration&FORM=IRMHRS#view=detail&id=327F0792912BAC0C924CE9141B4D7772CA2CBD88&selectedIndex=1
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FLOOD PROTECTION AND INSURANCE DISCOUNTS:  
Policy 101.5.32 
In order to protect property from flooding and reduce flood insurance costs for property owners, a Flood 
Protection Height Exception shall be provided to the 35 foot height limit in Policy 101.5.30 as follows: 
 

1. For new structures which are voluntarily elevated to exceed the structure’s minimum required 
FEMA base flood elevation (BFE) based on the flood zone, an exception of up to five (5) feet above the 
35-foot height limit may be permitted.  The amount of the exception shall be a maximum of five (5) 
feet, and shall be no greater than the amount of voluntary elevation above BFE; and  
2. For existing structures which do not currently exceed the height limit of 35 feet in Policy 101.5.30 
and are voluntarily elevated to meet and/or exceed the structure’s minimum required FEMA BFE 
based on the flood zone, an exception of up to five (5) feet above the 35-foot height limit may be 
permitted. The amount of the exception shall be a maximum of five (5) feet, and shall be no greater 
than the amount of elevation necessary to meet BFE plus the amount of voluntary elevation above 
BFE; and 
3. Existing structures which do not currently exceed the height limit of 35 feet in Policy 101.5.30, may 
be permitted a height exception of more than five (5) feet, if necessary, to voluntarily elevate the 
structure to meet the structure’s minimum required FEMA BFE based on the flood zone plus 1 (one) 
additional foot above BFE. 

 
Draft Policy 101.5.32 is intended to help protect structures from flood events, mitigate upcoming FEMA 
flood zone height changes, mitigate rising insurance costs for the property owner and assist with flood 
insurance rate discounts in the Community Rating System.  The discussed height exception would allow 
structures to be elevated higher than the required minimum FEMA base flood elevation which could then 
allow property owners to obtain discounts on their insurance and help mitigate potential flooding damage.  
 
See the following example on flood insurance discounts: 
 
 

 

EXAMPLE: 
 

PreFIRM 
“A” Zone 

$250k building coverage 
$2k deductible 
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For draft Policy 101.5.32 which creates the Flood Protection Height exception, the BOCC expressed 
concerns with a property owner’s ability to either build or elevate their homes without losing living space 
(i.e. reducing the number of stories of the structure) and being squeezed into smaller homes.  To try and 
determine if this is an issue with the proposed policy exception, which would allow an additional 5 feet in 
height, County staff has evaluated the number of properties per flood zone [following Flood Zone table] and 
created basic illustrations [following 4 page Flood Zone Height Analysis] to depict how the current height 
limit, per flood zone, may affect proposed development, and examples with the flood protection height 
exception. 
 
Based on the information in the Flood Zone table, it is noted that the majority of parcels within 
unincorporated Monroe County fall within the AE 7 to AE 11 flood zones.  There are 44,910 parcels within 
these flood zones, out of an estimated 56,843 total parcels within unincorporated Monroe County (79% of 
the total parcels are within AE 7 to AE 11).   
 
Based on the information in the Flood Zone Height Analysis, generally: 

• In flood zones X through AE 10 or VE 10 [approx. 47,158 parcels], a three (3) story structure may 
be developed. 

•  In flood zones AE 11 (VE 11) through AE 20 (VE 20) [approx. 9,330 parcels], a two (2) story 
structure may be developed.   

• For flood zones AE 21 (VE 21) and greater [approx. 19 parcels], a one (1) story structure may be 
developed.  
 

The generalized comments are made based upon the provided examples, within the Flood Zone Height 
Analysis, with crown of road at 5ft and used as the starting point (grade) for measuring height.   
 

Land Development Code 
 
HEIGHT is defined as: the vertical distance between grade and the highest part of any 
structure…. 
 
GRADE means the highest natural elevation of the ground surface, prior to construction, 
next to the proposed walls of a structure, or the crown or curb of the nearest road directly 
adjacent to the structure, whichever is higher….  
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FLOOD ZONE TABLE 

 FEMA Flood Zone Number of Parcels % of total  % of total 
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X 1,935  3.40% 
5.16% 0.2 PCT ANNUAL 

CHANCE FLOOD 
HAZARD 999  1.76% 
AE 5 1  0.00% 

83.48% 

AE 6 1,964  3.46% 
AE 7 8,996  15.83% 
AE 8 14,824  26.08% 
AE 9 11,272  19.83% 
AE 10 6,835  12.02% 
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e AE 11 2,983  5.25% 
AE 12 121  0.21% 
AE 13 418  0.74% 
AE 14 36  0.06% 
AE 15 3  0.01% 
AE 16 1  0.00% 

3 story  
VE 9 5  0.01% 

10.76% 

VE 10 327  0.58% 
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VE 11 1,019  1.79% 
VE 12 1,443  2.54% 
VE 13 1,069  1.88% 
VE 14 1,815  3.19% 
VE 15 352  0.62% 
VE 16 31  0.05% 
VE 17 33  0.06% 
VE 19 5  0.01% 
VE 20 1  0.00% 
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e VE 21 8  0.01% 
VE 22 7  0.01% 
VE 23 1  0.00% 
VE 24 1  0.00% 
VE 26 2  0.00% 

 OPEN WATER 10  0.02%   

          

  total parcels  56,843     
Note: As of October 2014 there are approximately 56,843 parcels in unincorporated Monroe County. 

The total from the spreadsheet will be different as some of the submerged parcels do not fall within the FEMA Zones. 
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Flood Zone 
Height Analysis 
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Flood Zone 
Height Analysis 
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Flood Zone 
Height Analysis 
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Height Analysis 
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EXISTING STRUCTURES: 
Policy 101.5.33 
A lawfully established existing structure which currently exceeds the height limit of 35 feet in Policy 
101.5.30 may be repaired, improved or reconstructed to its existing height, provided the structure is limited 
to the lawfully established existing intensity, floor area, density and type of use. A Flood Protection Height 
Exception for a lawfully established existing structure exceeding the 35 foot height limit shall be provided 
as follows: 

1. For lawfully established existing structures which currently exceed the height limit of 35 feet in 
Policy 101.5.30 and are voluntarily elevated to meet and/or exceed the structure’s minimum required 
FEMA BFE based on the flood zone, an exception of up to five (5) feet may be permitted. The amount 
of the exception shall be a maximum of five (5) feet, and shall be no greater than the amount of 
elevation necessary to meet BFE plus the amount of voluntary elevation above BFE; and 
2. Lawfully established existing structures which currently exceed the height limit of 35 feet in Policy 
101.5.30, may be permitted a height exception of more than five (5) feet, if necessary, to voluntarily 
elevate the structure meet the structure’s minimum required FEMA BFE based on the flood zone plus 1 
(one) additional foot above BFE. 

 
For draft Policy 101.5.33 which creates the height exception for a lawfully established existing structure 
which currently exceeds the 35 foot height limit to be repaired, improved or reconstructed to its existing 
height and provides a Flood Protection Height Exception to elevate the structure to meet and/or exceed the 
required FEMA BFE. 
 
Example 1: 5 feet to exceed the structure’s minimum required FEMA BFE 
 
     49’ 0” 
 
     44’ 0” 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
         AE 5       AE 5 
 

Existing 
structure 
= 44 ft 

11’
 

11’ 

11’ 

11’ 

11’
 

11’
 

11’
 

11’
 

+5’ above BFE  

+5’ in height  

Existing structure= 44ft 
 
Replaced 44ft structure + 
elevated 5ft above BFE 
 
Height = 49ft 
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Example 2: elevated 10ft to meet the structure’s minimum required FEMA BFE plus 1 additional foot 
above BFE 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
        AE 15       AE 15 
 
 
Note, staff has not been able to complete an inventory of structures that exceed the adopted height limit of 
35 feet as there is not enough information in our files to determine the exact grade (either highest natural 
elevation of the ground surface, prior to construction, next to the proposed walls of a structure, or the 
crown or curb of the nearest road directly adjacent to the structure, whichever is higher) for most structures 
built before 1985.  As such, we cannot determine the number of structures which may be affected by the 
proposed policy. Below are examples of structures which appear to exceed the adopted height limit: 
 

Moon Bay Condos, mm 104  
Built in the 70s 
Crown of road might be 13-14’ based on LiDAR, 
Building B is 46’ from ground level of 13’ AMSL.  
Building A is 49’6” from ground level. 
 

Harbor 92 Condos, mm 92 
Built in the 70s 
Crown of road might be about 8’ based on LiDAR 
Building is 63’ from ground level 
 

Kawama Tower, mm 102 
Built in the 70s 
Building is 85’ from ground level of about 7’ AMSL 

Existing 
structure 
= 44 ft 
 
Built below 
BFE 

11’
 11’ 

11’ 

11’ 

11’
 

11’
 

11’
 

11’
 

+1’ above BFE  

Existing structure= 44ft 
 
Elevated 44ft structure 10 
ft to meet BFE (AE 15) 
plus 1 foot above BFE 
 
Height = 55ft 

42’ 0’’ 

10’
 

55’ 0’’ 
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AFFORDABLE HOUSING: 
Policy 101.5.34 
In order to incentivize the development of affordable and employee/workforce housing, an exception shall 
be provided to the 35 foot height limit in Policy 101.5.30 exclusively for affordable or employee/workforce 
dwelling units that meet the income limits for the very low, low and/or median income categories on 
properties designated as Tier 3. A structure developed as affordable or employee/workforce housing for 
very low, low and/or median income categories may be developed with a maximum height of 44 feet (to 
provide for up to three stories over parking or development over nonresidential floor area). 
  
Height is defined as the vertical distance between grade and the highest part of any structure, including 
mechanical equipment, excluding the exceptions listed in Policy 101.5.30. 
 

very low income = household whose total household income does not exceed 50% of the median 
monthly household income for the county 

low income = household whose total household income does not exceed 80% of the median monthly 
household income for the county 

median income = means a household whose total household income does not exceed 100% of the 
median monthly household income for the county 

 
For draft Policy 101.5.34 which creates the height exception for affordable housing, the BOCC discussed 
finding ways to incentivize additional development of affordable housing.  The intent of the proposed policy 
is to encourage additional affordable and employee/workforce housing provision by allowing structures 
developed as affordable/workforce housing to be built with a maximum height of 44 feet to provide for 
three stories over parking or development over nonresidential floor area. 
 
 
      44’ 0” 
      40’ 0” 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Affordable Housing  
44 ft height limit  

 
EXAMPLE:  

2 ft for roof 
3 stories – 10ft each 

and 12ft for parking or 
commercial underneath 

40’ 

44’ 

10’ 

10’ 

10’ 

12’ 



File 2015-006  Page 15 of 20 
 

IV. PROPOSED AMENDMENT  
 
OPTIONS FOR PROPOSED HEIGHT POLICIES FOR REVIEW & DISCUSSION: 

Staff has developed the following draft policies for consideration. (Deletions are stricken through and 
additions are underlined.) 

 
Policy 101.45.2630 
In order to preserve the existing community character and natural 
environment, Monroe County shall limit the height of structures including 
mechanical equipment and landfills to 35 feet. Height is defined as the vertical 
distance between grade and the highest part of any structure, including 
mechanical equipment, but excluding spires and/or steeples on structures used 
for institutional and/or public uses only; chimneys; radio and/or television 
antennas; flagpoles; solar apparatus; utility poles and/or transmission towers; 
and certain antenna supporting structures with attached antennas and/or 
collocations. Exceptions will be allowed for appurtenances to buildings, 
transmission towers and other similar structures. 
 
Wind turbines may also exceed the 35 foot height limit provided the site and 
the turbines are owned and operated by a public utility, have an Avian 
Protection Plan approved by the United States Fish and Wildlife Service 
(USFWS) and the turbines comply with relevant State and federal wildlife 
protection laws such as the Endangered Species Act, Migratory Bird Treaty 
Act, Bald and Golden Eagle Protection Act, and National Environmental 
Policy Act. Applications proposing wind turbines which exceed 35 feet in 
height within the MIAI overlay shall be transmitted to NASKW for review 
and comment. 
 
In the case of airport districts, there shall be no exceptions to the 35 foot 
height limitation.   
 
Policy 101.5.31  
For Ocean Reef, a gated community which is isolated and inaccessible to the 
surrounding community, and has a distinct community character, structures 
may include non-habitable architectural decorative features (such as finials, 
rails, widow’s walk) that exceed the 35 foot height limit in Policy 101.5.30, 
but such features shall not exceed 5 feet above the structure’s roof-line. This 
exception shall not result in a structure or any architectural decorative feature 
with a height that would exceed 40 feet. 
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Policy 101.5.32 
In order to protect property from flooding and reduce flood insurance costs for 
property owners, a Flood Protection Height Exception shall be provided to the 
35 foot height limit in Policy 101.5.30 as follows: 
 

1. For new structures which are voluntarily elevated to exceed the 
structure’s minimum required FEMA base flood elevation (BFE) based 
on the flood zone, an exception of up to five (5) feet above the 35-foot 
height limit may be permitted.  The amount of the exception shall be a 
maximum of five (5) feet, and shall be no greater than the amount of 
voluntary elevation above BFE; and  

2. For existing structures which do not currently exceed the height limit of 
35 feet in Policy 101.5.30 and are voluntarily elevated to meet and/or 
exceed the structure’s minimum required FEMA BFE based on the 
flood zone, an exception of up to five (5) feet above the 35-foot height 
limit may be permitted. The amount of the exception shall be a 
maximum of five (5) feet, and shall be no greater than the amount of 
elevation necessary to meet BFE plus the amount of voluntary elevation 
above BFE; and 

3. Existing structures which do not currently exceed the height limit of 35 
feet in Policy 101.5.30, may be permitted a height exception of more 
than five (5) feet, if necessary, to voluntarily elevate the structure to 
meet the structure’s minimum required FEMA BFE based on the flood 
zone plus 1 (one) additional foot above BFE. 

 
Policy 101.5.33 
A lawfully established existing structure which currently exceeds the height 
limit of 35 feet in Policy 101.5.30 may be repaired, improved or reconstructed 
to its existing height, provided the structure is limited to the lawfully 
established existing intensity, floor area, density and type of use. A Flood 
Protection Height Exception for a lawfully established existing structure 
exceeding the 35 foot height limit shall be provided as follows: 

1. For lawfully established existing structures which currently exceed the 
height limit of 35 feet in Policy 101.5.30 and are voluntarily elevated to 
meet and/or exceed the structure’s minimum required FEMA BFE 
based on the flood zone, an exception of up to five (5) feet may be 
permitted. The amount of the exception shall be a maximum of five (5) 
feet, and shall be no greater than the amount of elevation necessary to 
meet BFE plus the amount of voluntary elevation above BFE; and 

2. Lawfully established existing structures which currently exceed the 
height limit of 35 feet in Policy 101.5.30, may be permitted a height 
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exception of more than five (5) feet, if necessary, to voluntarily elevate 
the structure meet the structure’s minimum required FEMA BFE based 
on the flood zone plus 1 (one) additional foot above BFE. 

 
Policy 101.5.34 
In order to incentivize the development of affordable and employee/workforce 
housing, an exception shall be provided to the 35 foot height limit in Policy 
101.5.30 exclusively for affordable or employee/workforce dwelling units that 
meet the income limits for the very low, low and/or median income categories 
on properties designated as Tier 3. A structure developed as affordable or 
employee/workforce housing for very low, low and/or median income 
categories may be developed with a maximum height of 44 feet (to provide 
for up to three stories over parking or development over nonresidential floor 
area). 
  
Height is defined as the vertical distance between grade and the highest part of 
any structure, including mechanical equipment, excluding the exceptions 
listed in Policy 101.5.30. 

 
 

V. CONSISTENCY WITH THE MONROE COUNTY YEAR 2010 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN, 
THE FLORIDA STATUTES, AND PRINCIPLES FOR GUIDING DEVELOPMENT 
 

A. The proposed amendment is consistent with the following Goals, Objectives and Policies of the 
Monroe County Year 2010 Comprehensive Plan.  Specifically, the amendment furthers:  
 
Goal 101: Monroe County shall manage future growth to enhance the quality of life, ensure the safety of 
County residents and visitors, and protect valuable natural resources. 
 
Policy 217.1.4 
Monroe County shall continue its policy of reviewing the current Building Code and, as appropriate, adopting 
structural standards and site alteration restrictions that meet or exceed the minimum FEMA requirements. The 
Building Code shall be reviewed and revised at least every five years. The recommendations of the applicable 
interagency hazard mitigation report shall be considered in revisions to the Code. 
 
Policy 217.1.5 
Monroe County shall continue to participate in the National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) Community 
Rating System (CRS) to the maximum extent possible and shall seek to improve its current CRS Class 9 
rating.  
 
Policy 217.1.6 
Monroe County shall continue to enforce federal, state and local setback and elevation requirements to 
promote the protection and safety of life and property. Revisions to the existing setback requirements 
contained in the Land Development Regulations shall be considered as a means of reducing property damage 
caused by storms.  
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Objective 601.3 
By January 4, 1998, Monroe County shall increase implementation efforts to eliminate substandard housing 
and to preserve, conserve and enhance the existing housing stock, including historic structures and sites.  
 
Policy 601.3.2 
The County Code Enforcement Office and Building Department will enforce building code regulations and 
County ordinances governing the structural condition of the housing stock, to ensure the provision of safe, 
decent and sanitary housing and stabilization of residential neighborhoods.  
 

B. The amendment is consistent with the Principles for Guiding Development for the Florida Keys 
Area, Section 380.0552(7), Florida Statute.  

 
For the purposes of reviewing consistency of the adopted plan or any amendments to that plan with the 
principles for guiding development and any amendments to the principles, the principles shall be construed as 
a whole and no specific provision shall be construed or applied in isolation from the other provisions.  
 
(a) Strengthening local government capabilities for managing land use and development so that local 

government is able to achieve these objectives without continuing the area of critical state concern 
designation. 

(b) Protecting shoreline and marine resources, including mangroves, coral reef formations, seagrass beds, 
wetlands, fish and wildlife, and their habitat. 

(c) Protecting upland resources, tropical biological communities, freshwater wetlands, native tropical 
vegetation (for example, hardwood hammocks and pinelands), dune ridges and beaches, wildlife, and 
their habitat. 

(d) Ensuring the maximum well-being of the Florida Keys and its citizens through sound economic 
development. 

(e) Limiting the adverse impacts of development on the quality of water throughout the Florida Keys. 
(f) Enhancing natural scenic resources, promoting the aesthetic benefits of the natural environment, and 

ensuring that development is compatible with the unique historic character of the Florida Keys. 
(g) Protecting the historical heritage of the Florida Keys. 
(h) Protecting the value, efficiency, cost-effectiveness, and amortized life of existing and proposed major 

public investments, including: 
 

1. The Florida Keys Aqueduct and water supply facilities; 
2. Sewage collection, treatment, and disposal facilities; 
3. Solid waste treatment, collection, and disposal facilities; 
4. Key West Naval Air Station and other military facilities; 
5. Transportation facilities; 
6. Federal parks, wildlife refuges, and marine sanctuaries; 
7. State parks, recreation facilities, aquatic preserves, and other publicly owned properties; 
8. City electric service and the Florida Keys Electric Co-op; and 
9. Other utilities, as appropriate. 

 
(i) Protecting and improving water quality by providing for the construction, operation, maintenance, and 

replacement of stormwater management facilities; central sewage collection; treatment and disposal 
facilities; and the installation and proper operation and maintenance of onsite sewage treatment and 
disposal systems. 

(j) Ensuring the improvement of nearshore water quality by requiring the construction and operation of 
wastewater management facilities that meet the requirements of ss. 381.0065(4)(l) and 403.086(10), as 
applicable, and by directing growth to areas served by central wastewater treatment facilities through 
permit allocation systems. 

(k) Limiting the adverse impacts of public investments on the environmental resources of the Florida Keys. 
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(l) Making available adequate affordable housing for all sectors of the population of the Florida Keys. 
(m) Providing adequate alternatives for the protection of public safety and welfare in the event of a natural or 

manmade disaster and for a post disaster reconstruction plan. 
(n) Protecting the public health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of the Florida Keys and maintaining the 

Florida Keys as a unique Florida resource. 
 
Pursuant to Section 380.0552(7) Florida Statutes, the proposed amendment is consistent with the Principles 
for Guiding Development as a whole and is not inconsistent with any Principle.   

 
C. The proposed amendment is consistent with the Part II of Chapter 163, Florida Statute (F.S.). 

Specifically, the amendment furthers: 
 
Section 163.3161(4), F.S. – It is the intent of this act that local governments have the ability to preserve and 
enhance present advantages; encourage the most appropriate use of land, water, and resources, consistent with 
the public interest; overcome present handicaps; and deal effectively with future problems that may result 
from the use and development of land within their jurisdictions. Through the process of comprehensive 
planning, it is intended that units of local government can preserve, promote, protect, and improve the public 
health, safety, comfort, good order, appearance, convenience, law enforcement and fire prevention, and 
general welfare; facilitate the adequate and efficient provision of transportation, water, sewerage, schools, 
parks, recreational facilities, housing, and other requirements and services; and conserve, develop, utilize, and 
protect natural resources within their jurisdictions 

 
163.3177(1), F.S. - The comprehensive plan shall provide the principles, guidelines, standards, and 
strategies for the orderly and balanced future economic, social, physical, environmental, and fiscal 
development of the area that reflects community commitments to implement the plan and its 
elements. These principles and strategies shall guide future decisions in a consistent manner and 
shall contain programs and activities to ensure comprehensive plans are implemented. The sections 
of the comprehensive plan containing the principles and strategies, generally provided as goals, 
objectives, and policies, shall describe how the local government’s programs, activities, and land 
development regulations will be initiated, modified, or continued to implement the comprehensive 
plan in a consistent manner. It is not the intent of this part to require the inclusion of implementing 
regulations in the comprehensive plan but rather to require identification of those programs, 
activities, and land development regulations that will be part of the strategy for implementing the 
comprehensive plan and the principles that describe how the programs, activities, and land 
development regulations will be carried out. The plan shall establish meaningful and predictable 
standards for the use and development of land and provide meaningful guidelines for the content of 
more detailed land development and use regulations. 

 
VI. PROCESS 

 
Comprehensive Plan amendments may be proposed by the Board of County Commissioners, the 
Planning Commission, the Director of Planning, or the owner or other person having a contractual 
interest in property to be affected by a proposed amendment.  The Director of Planning shall review and 
process applications as they are received and pass them onto the Development Review Committee and 
the Planning Commission.  
 
The Planning Commission shall hold at least one public hearing.  The Planning Commission shall 
review the application, the reports and recommendations of the Department of Planning & 
Environmental Resources and the Development Review Committee and the testimony given at the 
public hearing.  The Planning Commission shall submit its recommendations and findings to the Board 
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of County Commissioners (BOCC).  The BOCC holds a public hearing to consider the transmittal of the 
proposed comprehensive plan amendment, and considers the staff report, staff recommendation, and the 
testimony given at the public hearing.  The BOCC may or may not recommend transmittal to the Florida 
Department of Economic Opportunity (DEO).  The amendment is transmitted to DEO, which then 
reviews the proposal and issues an Objections, Recommendations and Comments (ORC) Report.  Upon 
receipt of the ORC report, the County has 180 days to adopt the amendments, adopt the amendments 
with changes or not adopt the amendment. 

 
VII. STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 
 

VIII. EXHIBITS 
 

1. Transcription of the BOCC height discussion, from the October 7, 2014 public hearing 
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Monroe County Board of County Commissioners Special Meeting 

Tuesday, October 7, 2014 

 

Height Exceptions 

Then the next change is on page 43… 

You have a couple of new policies here, you all directed staff to take a look at how to possibly raise the height 

limit for architectural features that really just apply to Ocean Reef and so we’ve also come up with some criteria 

and you’ll see that on those two policies 5.31 and 5.32 

Mayor Murphy: Do we have a public speaker on this Lindsay? 

Lindsay Ballard:  We do.  Joel Reed. 

Mayor Murphy:  Debbie, are you ready for public speakers? 

Debbie:  Yes mam on this particular topic. 

Joel Reed: Good morning Mayor, Commissioners, Joel Reed.  I’m here today on behalf of Ocean Reef Club and 

Ocean Reef Community Association in regard to this issue.  First of all I want to thank you for the support.  As 

you know Ocean Reef is a distinct community.  It’s a private gated community of about twenty five hundred 

acres, about seventeen hundred units up there.  We have a lot of additional amenities up there, public buildings 

or quasi, kind of public buildings that are for the club purpose as well.  Ocean Reef also has a Community 

Association which has its own architectural board, its architectural committee that kind of makes going through 

DRC and Planning Commission a day at the beach compared to their architectural committee.  They are very 

stringent.  They impose a lot of times additional requirements and regulations on their projects.  Their whole 

community is very involved with the process.  They’re all notified as far as any changes that happen up there.  So 

the five foot, we appreciate the support and the language in there a lot of times, some of the single family 

homes and the commercial buildings as well bump up as far as making them more architecturally attractive to 

need this section to allow for that.  We also have had a lot of discussions the last couple of weeks internally as 

well.  I’m going to pass out, I guess to the clerk and to you guys, additional language we would like you guys to 

consider.  But we have been talking to staff about ….(passes out additional language considerations) So not to 

confuse the issue, there are two specific issues.  First is allowing for some additional architectural features that 

the five foot would do.  As we went through the club, as I said, owns a lot of buildings.  Some of those buildings 

are the hotels that are near Buccaneer Island, if you’ve been up there before.  The Amberjack, The Dolphin, The 

Marlin, these buildings are aging, they’re coming to the end of their life.  We have done quite a few renovations 

to them.  At this point there is not really many more renovations that can be done in order to continue to 

maintain and operate them.  As you know, that function of the club as well is essential to maintaining a Class A 

club up there, continuing to provide for the tax base that comes out of Ocean Reef is by having an attractive club 

where we can continue to attract, to maintain current members and attract new members.  A lot of those 

buildings, I have some data, it’s not all there, The Amberjack for example is three levels of living.  Just to give an 
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example, the couple, I’m not going to go into all of them, but we said look if these things were substantially 

damaged through a hurricane, or they had to come down, or we had to rebuild, we wouldn’t be able to build 

back those units to those heights that are there today.  We have several.  We have The Harbor House which is a 

condominium, its over fifty four feet right now in Ocean Reef Club.  We have The Marlin, which is one of the 

hotel buildings, that’s at forty two feet.  We got the Dolphin Hotel at forty seven feet and The Creek House.  We 

didn’t have the number on it but we know that’s well over forty feet as well.  That’s another condominium 

building up there.  We came up with the boat barn, that’s at thirty seven feet, the boat barn that we have up 

there.  But there is about seven or eight buildings specifically that we thought it would be greatly impacted as 

we try to redevelop these properties or if we have to due to a hurricane or other issues.  Some of the other 

issues we face is that although these are three stories and they are just pushing the height limit right now.  You 

know, if you get three stories up there you’re at thirty feet and then you have an architectural roof element 

you’re at thirty seven feet or something like that.  A lot of these buildings are built below flood right now so if 

we go to build them back, obviously we’re talking about sea level rise, we want to encourage those buildings to 

be brought back up to flood.  What happens is we lose a whole top level that we currently have today.  We 

would lose almost a whole floor there out of those developments and that’s just not possible to happen.  So we 

proposed some additional policy language to put in there to protect these existing buildings that are there to be 

able to be built back.  We haven’t thoroughly vetted with staff yet at this point we have just proposed talking 

about the issue that I just explained.  We would like and hope to support and to continue to work with staff to 

tweak some of this language to get into the Comp Plan to protect us on some of these issues.  And the language, 

it exempts, it doesn’t exempt, it doesn’t include single family homes so this is only for the multi-family and 

commercial structures that are up there, so it doesn’t include any of the single family homes and what it says is, 

“lawfully established structures that exclude single family homes that exceed this height limit may be replaced 

with their existing height plus any additional height required to elevate the first finished floor two feet above 

the FE” so encouraging them to go, you know, those extra two feet as well above that base flood elevation to 

account for future sea level rise as well.  And then also that the height limit applicable to Ocean Reef and this 

would be an exemption for their community center building.  The community center building up there right now 

puts on productions and theater productions and when it was built, they aren’t able to attract and have the top 

of the line theater groups that come in there because a lot of the sets that they have, they change throughout 

the production.  They actually lift that whole set up to lift that whole backdrop up into the ceiling and then they 

drop down the new one and their theater wasn’t able to be designed to that because of the height and so they 

also want that as an exclusion so that they can look to enhance that building at some point to be able to attract 

those types of productions there.  I’m here for any questions.  Thank you for considering. 

Mayor Murphy:  So the proposed additional language, Joel, is what you want, not the existing language? 

Joel Reed:  We support the Club and the Community Association both support that existing policy language 

that’s in there … 

Commissioner Carruthers:  the institutional language … 

Joel Reed: Yeah. This is additional language, as we were talking about that five foot that was in there, that we 

were supportive of.  You know, we started to talk about the hotels and the aging and the issues and if we did try 

and rebuild them back, what that would look like in the loss of rooms and the development that’s there. 
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Mayor Murphy:  Do we have a public speaker on this? 

Lindsay Ballard:  We do.   

Mayor Murphy:  Let’s hear the public speaker.  Another one. 

Lindsay Ballard:  D.A. Aldridge  

D.A. Aldridge:  I’m D.A. Aldridge.  I live on Tavernier which is part of Kay Largo.  Here we are at the last minute, a 

breath away from sending the Comp Plan and all of a sudden we see a very important change being requested 

by our Northern neighbors.  The Federation of Homeowner’s Association has been very adamant about height 

restrictions for many years and we have continually fought for thirty five feet.  We are asking at this time, I am 

asking at this time to have you not vote on this.  We have not had the opportunity to look at the language that 

has been just handed to you and we feel that it needs to be reviewed very closely by the staff and by you 

because this is a huge change that they are requesting.  Thank you.   

Mayor Murphy: … That’s it  

Commissioner Kolhage:  What does the, in the final sentence when they talk about assembly group A1 and so 

forth, what does that mean? 

Christine Hurley:  We don’t know.   

Mayor Murphy: Well they haven’t seen it yet.  This is the problem with this. 

Christine Hurley:  Well we have seen that he emailed it but we asked questions.  We didn’t know what he meant 

by that. 

Commissioner Kolhage:  Well but we’re going to have to be more specific on that.  We’ll have to have language 

that says exactly what it means.  I think anyway.   

Commissioner Rice:  Could we not deal with this today and deal with it in January?  

Christine Hurley:  If you want us to address his comments, I just say get direction from the board at this point.  

We work on some type of language to bring back to you in January.    

Commissioner Rice:  I think that’s what we should do. 

Mayor Murphy:  And what happens if we then want to make changes in January?  Do we hold up the whole 

process? 

Christine Hurley:  I think you can legally make changes on the floor by motion before we transmit. 

Bob Shillinger:  As long as you’re not changing the general substance of it.  The general tone of it. 

Mayor Murphy:  Well that’s what I am worried about.  If we let this go til January and then begin to, ya know, 

flesh it out and the public speaks and we all get confused and then what happens to the rest of Comp Plan 

because we are supposed to vote on that in January.   
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Commissioner Neugent: I would ask on issues like this because I very much agree with what was said that we 

just got this and I think we need some information and my question is, and there may be some more issues very 

similar to this that come up.  Can we have another meeting discussing those particular issues before the January 

transmittal? 

Christine Hurley:  Sure. We could do that. 

Mayor Murphy:  That would be helpful. 

Commissioner Rice:  That may be the way to approach it. 

Christine Hurley:  The problem with holding it in November or December is the calendars are already a mess 

from the holidays. 

Commissioner Neugent: Oh my gosh we might have to do a little work. 

Christine Hurley:  No, that’s not what I meant.  It’s just that even your regular board meetings got all shifted 

around. 

Commissioner Neugent:  Have it at the board meeting.  End of the item discussion for a board meeting. 

Christine Hurley:  Okay.  We can do that.  

Mayor Murphy:  We can do that. 

Commissioner Neugent: Another things that’s in this right here as I read it, for clarification purposes, 

“architectural decorating features that exceed the thirty five foot height limit but such features shall not exceed 

five feet above the structures roof line”  Joel also mentioned that some of these buildings are already, I guess 

they would be legal non-conforming because they are above the height limit, so when you say “features shall 

not exceed five feet above the structures roofline” what roofline are we talking about?  The one that’s already 

non-conforming? Or thirty five feet, shall not exceed five feet above thirty five feet?  That’s not the way I 

necessarily interpret that. 

Mayor Murphy:  Because if it’s the fifty four foot building, we’re now at fifty nine… 

Christine Hurley:  It’s not though.  This is meant for new development that cannot exceed thirty five feet. 

Commissioner Neugent:  Well what happens … 

Christine Hurley:  Joel has added in and what he is really asking you to do, is in simple terms, and I think it could 

be very simplified, is agree that existing, non-conforming buildings that are at a height greater than thirty five 

feet, be allowed to rebuild to that height plus… 

Commissioner Neugent:  I didn’t hear anybody bring that up… 

Christine Hurley: That’s really what he is asking though. 

Commissioner Rice: Well that’s what this really says 
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Mayor Murphy: Plus what? 

Christine Hurley: plus, let him adjust, like we already have a provision in here, for another five feet, if they need 

to raise the elevation for FEMA floodplain issues. 

Mayor Murphy:  Fine, but not for decorative features. 

Christine Hurley:  Well he talked about decorative also, but he definitely spoke about … 

Mayor Murphy:  Well let’s get it down pat. 

Christine Hurley:  Well we will try to but we got his language a couple days ago and… 

Mayor Murphy:  Well his language is kind of going in a figure eight. 

Commissioner Kolhage:  I understand what they are saying.  In other words, he wants to maintain what they 

have now with an adjustment. 

Christine Hurley:  Yes.  I think that’s what he is asking. 

Commissioner Kolhage:  And I think that is reasonable.   

Mayor Murphy:  To replace a building, an older building that was built over thirty five feet, have a problem with 

that anywhere in Monroe County.  It is what it is, we’re all used to it, it’s part of the landscape. 

Commissioner Neugent: Clarification on what you just said 

Mayor Murphy:  I do not object to any of the older buildings that were built above thirty five feet.  We all have 

them in our neighborhoods.  If they need to be replaced or have to be replaced, I don’t have a problem with 

them maintaining the height. 

Commissioner Neugent:  Hold on a minute there.  Is there anything in our code, and I would use this as an 

analogy, FEMA’s description of it, if its damaged by more than fifty percent, it has to be rebuilt, that is there 

anything in our code or Comp Plan that says that it then can be built over thirty five feet? 

Mayor Murphy:   No, No. 

Christine Hurley:  Okay, today, don’t mix apples and oranges.  Today our code does not allow us to approve a 

building permit above thirty five feet.  If the structure is destroyed beyond fifty percent, they then have to 

conform to the new code, which is the thirty five foot height limit.  And if it’s destroyed beyond fifty percent 

under the floodplain rules, they have to raise the elevation and that’s why they added this other position. 

Commissioner Neugent: I understand the apples and oranges thing that I just plugged into it as an analogy but 

what I am saying is, have we had that discussion?  You just said, at least my interpretation, that you can’t build 

what Commissioner Murphy just said … 

Christine Hurley:  You can’t.  That is what Joel is asking you to change. 
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Commissioner Neugent:  So we need to have that discussion. 

Commissioner Carruthers:  And that’s why we have the further thing about flood protection and height 

exceptions.  Go to 105.5.32.  We added that so that we would allow people to exceed the thirty five feet when 

they have to, to create enough free board to comply with FEMA regulations. 

Commissioner Neugent:  I’m not talking about base flood elevation. 

Commissioner Carruthers:  but that is the crunch that you are getting into.  When the Mayor says that you can 

rebuild a building at the height it is today, but we have a thirty five foot limit and FEMA says you gotta raise your 

building five feet, you lose a story.   

Commissioner Neugent:  that addresses one part of it.  The other part that is not being addressed in my opinion, 

is do we have anything, are we proposing that then a fifty four foot high building could be rebuilt to fifty four 

feet. 

Christine Hurley:  Joel is proposing that. 

Commissioner Neugent:  And that’s what I am asking this Commission.  Is that where we want to go with that? 

Commissioner Carruthers:  Well, I mean, if we don’t allow people to do that, isn’t that essentially a taking? I 

mean you would be … think about the real life economic consequences of… 

Bob Shillinger:  There may be some Bert Harris implications but it’s a different analysis. 

Commissioner Kolhage:  What we are considering here is because of the isolated and specific nature of Ocean 

Reef, do we want to make an exception here? 

Commissioner Neugent: And can I tag onto that Commissioner Kolhage?  Municipalities have the right, if I 

misspeak correct me, to go above thirty five feet if they choose to.  Marathon has gone above thirty five feet, I 

think Key West has a height limit above thirty five feet, but based on what Commissioner Kolhage just said, and I 

want to hear some arguments otherwise, Ocean Reef is an isolated area, miles away from anyone else and a 

gated community, albeit in unincorporated Monroe County, they’re very similar to a municipality with a city 

type manager, that do we want to be so parental if they have no objections internally amongst themselves to 

keep them from rebuilding above thirty five feet or changing some things that they have gone through the 

public input locally with their gated community.  Do we want to impose our thoughts on how Ocean Reef should 

be run?   

Commissioner Rice:  I don’t think we are trying to do that. 

Mayor Murphy:  I don’t either. But I will tell you, my feeling is, in many, many instances, what Ocean Reef wants 

to do up there because they are away from everyone, I’ve agreed with.  They’ve had good ideas, no problem and 

they do it.  However when it comes to things like the height limit that everyone in this county is interested in, 

every developer is watching, and a lot of the homeowners are watching.  I can’t do something for them that I 

won’t do for the rest of the county.  And I will go to the extent that these buildings that Joel is talking about, 

were built when there was no height limit actually.  If this comes down either in a hurricane or they want to 
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remodel it, I don’t have a problem with them rebuilding to the height it was.  I don’t think it ruins the landscape 

because we have had thirty/forty years of looking at it.  And therefore, everyone else in the county can also 

rebuild the over thirty five feet structures they have.  Most of them are commercial structures. 

Commissioner Kolhage: Okay can I ask you a question Mayor so I can more or less understand your position?  So 

you’re saying, you don’t have a problem with them rebuilding to the height that they are now but you mean 

without the adjustment for base flood elevation or with it? 

Mayor Murphy:  No, because everyone in the county is going to get that adjustment. 

Commissioner Kolhage:  So you don’t have an objection to it? 

Mayor Murphy:  Not to that.  I have an objection to the decorative features. 

Commissioner Kolhage:  Okay but look, if it’s, if they got a fifty foot building and there is a five foot adjustment 

for base flood elevation, you don’t have a problem with them going to fifty five feet? 

Mayor Murphy:  No. 

Commissioner Kolhage: Okay. 

Mayor Murphy:  They are going to what they were before the remodel … 

Christine Hurley: and you want it county wide not just for Ocean Reef? 

Mayor Murphy:  Yes. 

Commissioner Carruthers:  But only for flood mitigation… 

Mayor Murphy:  That’s it, no decorative stuff.   

Christine Hurley:  Well right now the decorative is in, the flood is in… 

Commissioner Carruthers:  Well the decorative is in for Ocean Reef only, the flood is in for everyone. Right? 

Christine Hurley:  Yeah and the decorative is not so much what Joel is talking about relative to the bigger 

commercial buildings, its more for the single family homes that want the decorative features on top of the roof.  

They are separate issues really.  So right now in the draft policy you have included an extra five feet in Ocean 

Reef for the decorative architectural features, you’ve included for the whole county up to five feet adjustments 

for flood protection, raising your elevations, and Joel is asking you to also include, for Ocean Reef, but it sounds 

like you at least have one Commissioner who wants to do it county wide for grandfathering existing buildings 

that are higher than thirty five feet and allowing them to get the flood adjustment. 

Bob Shillinger:  You’d want to vest them for that height is what I’m hearing. 

Christine Hurley: Yup. But I don’t know the Commissions, I’m not getting… 
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Commissioner Neugent:  Well first of all the staff is supposed to review what the request is and bring it back the 

staff recommendation  

Christine Hurley:  But I’d like to know what the board, county wide or Ocean Reef for this vesting of existing 

buildings at least. 

Commissioner Rice:  Well let me help you out, if we don’t do that, the economic impact, eventually we will 

destroy what we know down here.  I don’t feel that we have any choice. 

Commissioner Carruthers:  I don’t think it’s fair…I don’t think it’s fair to not let somebody rebuild what they got.  

As it is when they do rebuild they have to meet standards that exist today that did not, and codes that exist 

today that did not exist then. 

Christine Hurley:  I understand what you all are asking for so if you want to just move on without voting, we will 

draft language and bring it back for discussion on one of your regular agendas. 

Commissioner Neugent:  Let me point this out, as someone who operated out of an illegal non-conforming 

building, if you think that it is something that is, it was called Porky’s restaurant, and if would have been 

destroyed by a storm, I would have had a very difficult time, if not impossible time to rebuild with the same 

amount of square footage because of setbacks that came into play after Porky’s was built eons ago.  So if you 

think that there is a fairness level here, there is really a lot of situations where you can’t rebuild.  

Commissioner Carruthers:  but wouldn’t you have been able to apply for variances and exceptions to those 

setbacks… 

Christine Hurley:  No. 

Commissioner Neugent:  You still would have had to meet the setback requirements. 

Christine Hurley:  You could apply for variance for a setback but not height.   

Mayor Murphy:  See well all we are talking about is height.  Not their setbacks.  Not anything else.   

Commissioner Kolhage: We’re talking about changing the whole concept of the fifty percent rule. 

Christine Hurley:  No I understand … 

Commissioner Kolhage:  How does it work? For height…we’re saying we’re washing away the fifty percent rule. 

Christine Hurley:  Well other things enter into ….for height you would be washing it away. 

Bob Shillinger: As a trigger for bringing it into compliance with current code 

Christine Hurley:  There are still other things that apply to that but most of those can be remedied by a variance. 

Commissioner Carruthers:  and just to clarify what you are eluding to I think, Commissioner, is that someone 

can elevate their building now.  And that’s not necessarily fifty percent improvement.  Right? 
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Christine Hurley:  I mean if you are elevating a building, you’re usually triggering that price… 

Commissioner Carruthers:  Well it depends on the building and the cost 

Commissioner Kolhage:  and the whole destruction issue and the fifty percent and that’s…. I’m not necessarily 

saying I have a problem with that but that’s what we’re doing  

Christine Hurley:  And I will say the examples that Joel gave of the condominiums, when you, let’s say have eight 

units per floor and now you have a storm that destroys more than fifty percent of that building, you are 

eliminating the possibility of one of those floors, because you are going to have to elevate it and that means 

eight condo owners don’t get a unit and so that’s related to the Bert Jay Harris that Bob referred to  

Commissioner Carruthers:  Everybody gets a smaller unit which is still going to be an issue so … 

Christine Hurley:  That’s under our current rules. 

Commissioner Rice:  And what we’re trying to do is validate, you don’t want to build a fifty year building or sixty 

year building without accommodating expected sea level rise  

Commissioner Carruthers:  I guess my only other comment is that I know that this is going to be controversial 

and people are going to be concerned about character and things like that… 

Mayor Murphy:  But it’s already there. 

Commissioner Carruthers:  Well it is already there… 

Mayor Murphy:  So it’s not changing the landscape… 

Commissioner Carruthers:  It’s not but trust me from dealing with this in Key West people have the perception 

that overnight the character of our communities is going to change and that’s not what we’re talking 

about…Over fifty years it probably will to some extent but it’s going to have to if we want to continue to live 

here.   

Mayor Murphy:  Alright listen we’re going to take a break  

………………………………………………………………………………………….. 

Mayor Murphy: And what I realized is we neglected to give Christine a head nod one way or the other on the 

non-habitable architectural decorative features.  My comment was, I will vote for the increase in height but not 

for the decorative features.  Discuss it and let her know which direction you would like her to take when she 

does her staff report. 

Commissioner Carruthers:  Are you talking about within Ocean Reef or County wide? 

Mayor Murphy:  They are the only ones that asked for it. 

Commissioner Carruthers:  I don’t really care. 
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Commissioner Neugent:  We’ll put together something that is going to be in place for twenty years or at least 

supposedly it should be put in place so this is going to be hard and complex so I would say that the data and 

information on it being done county wide. 

Mayor Murphy:  But the point is, what county wide?  I don’t care if its county wide, in fact it has to be.  For me 

to vote for a height limit, it has to be county wide.  Otherwise, I’m not going to vote for it.   

Christine Hurley:  Okay wait a minute, no one has proposed, maybe that’s where you’re going next I don’t know, 

right now what’s in your draft is flood for everybody … 

Mayor Murphy:  Base flood elevation…  

Christine Hurley:  They have talked about it, I am very clear, everyone is okay with that.  Ocean Reef only, 

decorative features, five additional feet.  And I didn’t hear, I heard Murphy say she’s opposed to it but I didn’t 

hear what any of you other Commissioners thought of that.   

Mayor Murphy:  And that’s what I am trying to bring out so that she knows where to go with it.   

Commissioner Neugent:  I thought I heard you ask, you wanted a head nod whether this was going to be 

proposed just for Ocean Reef or all of unincorporated Monroe County.  

Christine Hurley:  I had never heard that the decorative features was proposed for all of Monroe County from 

you all.   

Commissioner Rice and Commissioner Kolhage respond in unison: No, no… 

Commissioner Neugent: Okay but I also heard Commissioner Mayor Murphy say, I’m not going to treat them 

any different than the rest of the County. 

Commissioner Rice:  Well that gives you a slight clue as to how she might vote.  

Christine Hurley:  So what I think I’ve gotten clarity on is everybody’s okay allowing the people to get five of the 

five feet to adjust the floodplain if they are demolished.  The board wants us to draft language to address 

existing structures that are already over thirty five feet to be able to be replaced with the five foot flood 

adjustment.  What I don’t have any clarity on is whether or not the board wants us to keep in Ocean Reef 

allowance for five foot additional architectural decorative features or not.  Or if you want to expand that County 

wide, which I had never heard as an option to this moment.   

Commissioner Kolhage:  Let me just state my position on this and you can go down the line I guess but I really 

don’t care about the architectural features of Ocean Reef.  I’ve tried to care but I just can’t.  But I am a little 

concerned, I’m a little concerned about doing away with our fifty percent rule on the rest of the County and I’m 

not saying that I am going to support that.   

Commissioner Neugent:  I’m not saying that I am going to support anything.  I’m saying I just want the 

information to be able to make the decision, have the discussions with the people who are going to speak for 

and against it.   
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Mayor Murphy:  And my only point with the architectural features, I don’t think they are necessary, but if just 

for Ocean Reef, I don’t want them certainly spread all over Monroe County and if you do that you are 

guaranteeing somebody an extra ten feet.  Five feet for the base flood elevation, up to five feet, and then up to 

another five feet for their decorative stuff, plus what they’ll be rebuilding is something that is you know, fifty 

feet, fifty four feet, whatever.  Its adding ten feet to it instead of five.  I think that’s a bit much.   

Commissioner Neugent:  At what point in time do we bring up what was brought up previously about 

addressing affordable housing, increasing the height limit …This is all about bringing information back to us. 

Christine Hurley:  This is the time to bring that up if you want to.   

Commissioner Neugent:  And I just, looking back in history a little bit here, there were some comments that 

Meridian West could have had another floor which would have increased the housing if they had gone up an 

additional foot or so. So again, more information to discuss that strictly for affordable housing. 

Christine Hurley:  Yes and at the meeting that State Representative Raschein held, you all discussed that.  We do 

not have anything included right now in this policy for increased height for affordable housing.  We have 

discussed it as staff after you had that meeting.  It’s our opinion that if you are going to incentivize affordable 

housing development by giving them a higher height limit that you should restrict that to very low and low 

maybe median, but the moderate income level is something that we do not think should be incentivized with a 

height increase.   

Commissioner Neugent:  One of the biggest problems in dealing with affordable housing is the property to build 

them on.  Another reason why I think the discussion should take place for affordable housing to go up is that if 

you can build more on that specific site as opposed to trying to find other properties to build affordable housing 

on.  It helps resolve that part of the equation.   

Commissioner Kolhage:  So what are you going to do with that Christine? Between now and January? 

Christine Hurley:  Do you want us to include something for you to consider relative to affordable in the next 

version that we bring to you at your regular meeting for discussion? 

Commissioner Rice: I do. 

Commissioner Carruthers: I do. 

Christine Hurley:  Okay. 

Commissioner Kolhage: I remain to be convinced… 

Commissioner Rice:  I’m not sure how I feel about it but I think we do need to have the discussion. 

Christine Hurley:  And I’m going to have some diagrams for you all by the next meeting with each policy so you 

can see what that means.   

Commissioner Carruthers:  Will you also, related to this policy with affordable, that would have to be in very 

specific tiered areas obviously.   
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Christine Hurley: I understand.  I will bring that also. 

Commissioner Kolhage:  It’s all about potential serious community character issues here.   
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